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January 11, 2024 
 
 
Ms. Kimberly Kitteringham 
City Clerk 
City of Markham 
101 Town Centre Blvd 
Markham, ON L3R 9W3 
 
Sent via email: kkitteringham@markham.ca  
 
 
Re: Notice of Objection for the Proposed Designation of 10737 Victoria Square Blvd 

under Part IV, Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act  
 
 
Dear Ms. Kitteringham: 

LHC Heritage Planning & Archaeology Inc. (“LHC”), have been retained to provide heritage 
consulting services and advice to Gel-Don Investments Inc. (the “Owner”), the registered owner of 
10737 Victoria Square Blvd (the “Property”). Please consider this letter as the Owner’s objection 
to the proposed designation of the Property under the Ontario Heritage Act (“OHA”). 

The Owner plans to develop the Property and will be filing development applications for the 
Property in the near future.  The Owner has been in discussion with City staff concerning 
redevelopment since 2020, with ongoing discussions into 2022 and 2023. The Property is 
currently listed on the Municipal Heritage Register under Section 27 of the OHA, but is not 
designated. For the reasons set out below, the Owner opposes the proposed designation under 
Part IV, Section 29 of the OHA and requests that the City not designate the Property.  Further, we 
would request that the City withdraw its intention to designate the Property. 

As part of a Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment for the development of the Property, LHC has 
undertaken a detailed evaluation of the cultural heritage value or interest of the Property based 
on the criteria outlined in Ontario Regulation 9/06: Criteria for Determining Cultural Heritage 
Value or Interest under the OHA and it is our professional opinion that the Property does not 
meet sufficient criteria to be eligible for designation under Part IV, Section 29 of the OHA. 
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To be eligible for designation under Part IV of the OHA, a property must satisfy a minimum of two 
of the nine criteria outlined in O.Reg. 9/06, which include: 

1. The property has design value or physical value because it is a rare, unique, representative 
or early example of a style, type, expression, material or construction method. 

2. The property has design value or physical value because it displays a high degree of 
craftsmanship or artistic merit. 

3. The property has design value or physical value because it demonstrates a high degree of 
technical or scientific achievement. 

4. The property has historical value or associative value because it has direct associations 
with a theme, event, belief, person, activity, organization or institution that is significant 
to a community. 

5. The property has historical value or associative value because it yields, or has the potential 
to yield, information that contributes to an understanding of a community or culture. 

6. The property has historical value or associative value because it demonstrates or reflects 
the work or ideas of an architect, artist, builder, designer or theorist who is significant to a 
community. 

7. The property has contextual value because it is important in defining, maintaining or 
supporting the character of an area. 

8. The property has contextual value because it is physically, functionally, visually or 
historically linked to its surroundings. 

9. The property has contextual value because it is a landmark. 

Based on the research and analysis undertaken by LHC, the Property does not meet criterion 1. 
The circa 1872 building on the Property is a common or average example of a modest vernacular 
residential building. It is not representative of a particular style, type, expression, material or 
construction method and is not an early example of a vernacular residence in this area. Analysis 
of comparative examples identified a number of similar examples in Markham dating to earlier 
dates of construction or with a greater intensity of features demonstrating Georgian architectural 
influences commonly found in modest vernacular residences throughout the 19th century. 

The circa 1872 residence does not demonstrate a higher than average level of craftsmanship or 
artistic merit, nor does it demonstrate a high degree of technical or scientific achievement. As 
such, it does not meet criteria 2 or 3. 

The Property is associated with several families, including George and Ann Savage, Paul and Elle 
Schell, and Charles Dennie. A review of the history of the Property and surrounding area did not 
identify any direct associations with a theme, event, belief, person, activity, organization or 
institution that is significant to the Victoria Square area or the City of Markham. As such, it does 
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not meet criteria 4. 

LHC did not identify the Property as meeting criterion 5 for its potential to yield information 
contributing to an understanding of the community or a culture. 

The Property was not designed/built by, nor is it associated with, an architect, artist, builder, 
designer or theorist who is significant to the community.  As such, it does not meet criteria 6. 

LHC identified the Property as satisfying criterion 7, as it is important in maintaining the character 
of the surrounding Victoria Square area; however, LHC is of the opinion that its remaining in its 
circa 1872 location does not constitute a definable historical, visual, physical, or functional link 
with its surroundings, and as such does not meet criteria 8.  

Furthermore, the Property does not have any contextual value as a landmark.  As such, it does not 
meet criteria 9. 

Based on the foregoing, it is LHC’s opinion that the Property meets only one of nine of the O.Reg. 
9/06 criteria. For a property to be eligible for designation under Part IV, Section 29, it must meet a 
minimum of two of nine of the criteria. The Property fails to meet this statutory requirement and 
therefore it would not be appropriate to designate the Property under Part IV of the OHA. 

Sincerely, 

Christienne Uchiyama, MA CAHP 

Principal | Manager, Heritage Consulting Services 
LHC Heritage Planning & Archaeology Inc. 

Cc: Owner 

Encl: Notice of Intention to Designate, dated 14 December 2023 








